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MSt. Francis Mission was built in 1820 to serve the
populous congregation of Catholics who had come to
Kentucky from Maryland in 1786. The brick church of
Gothic design with classical detail%(fanlight detail,
pilasters) is in excellent condition, having been re-
stored twice in this century after decades of neglect,
the Catholic population having for the most part moved
away. Stained glass windows are mounted in the toder

p&MﬁL

arch windows,

four on each side and one above the door;

these probably were added after 1820. “A Gothic steeple
with arched outlooks is mounted on the front part of the
gabled roof. \The brick was painted a dark red in 1971.

interior of the Mission has floors and altar rail
pews with button-closing paneled doors; arches
columns and a balcony from which the
inside are light blue, white, and

The
of ash;
borne by octagonal
choir sings. Colors
natural ash.

A terra cotta shrine to Our Lady of Fatima was established
in the foreground of the church after the most recent re-
novation. A large cemetery is across the road from this
shrine.to Catholicism in Kentucky.

13§

SNOIL1LD3Ndl1lSNI



INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

[} Pre-Columbian!
] 15th Century

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)

[] 16th Century
[T] 17th Century

[J 18th Century
] 19th Century

] 20th Ce:iury

'SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known) ] 820
AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)
Abor iginal () Education ] Political d«éﬁ"}"“‘i
(T} Prehistoric (T} Engineering X Rehg:on/Ph| 'l 0”’1&(59*&@) \
] Histofic * [ Industry " " lesophy T ' _BFP’;’V({
[T} Agriculture (] Invention (] Science YA uy \
. " ;xu&‘ 4 ,"J/‘
E Architecture [] Landscope [0 Sculpture ( N
] Art Architecture 7] Social/Human- ' "
[ Commerce [C] Literature itarian ‘
[ Communications [ Military [C] Theater
(1 Conservation [ Music [T} Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE . - o
This Gothlc brlck church on the Frankfort Pike in a now secluded

rural’ community has stood since 1820 \representing the oldest
Catholic congregation in the present Roman Catholic Diocese of
Covington, and the second oldest such congregation in Kentuck;F
But for the recalcitrance of its early congregations, St. Franci
Mission as we know it today might well have assumed the role now
held by the Cathedral at Bardstown.

Anti-authoritarianismiwas a characteristic of the first 35 years

{of the congregation at White Sulphur. The community was settled

by\Mar]and Catholics in 1786, the year that Georgetown was set-
led by Vlrglnla Baptists. Prlest after priest strived to estab-
lish Kentucky missions from their base at White Sulphur, includi
the Rev. Father Stephen Badin, first Catholic¢ priest to be con-
secrated in the United States and of later fame as poet and as
the "Apostle of Kentucky.'" For a few years the immigrants were
served by the Rev. Charles Whalen, although he established no
congregation. There were at least 14 families in the earliest
days, and by 1794, when the church was established, there were
25 Catholic families in the neighborhood. Father Badin came to
Kentucky in 1793, saying his first mass during Advent of that
year at White Sulphur. He located his ministry there, traveling
frequently to the distant Catholic neighborhoods. The first
building stood about a half mile west of the present one. Attem
by parishioners to relocate the church property against the will
of and without the knowledge of the bishop created great problem
foe the church. Father Badin wrote that '"this congregation
tried h|s patience more than any other during his priestly
career.' Between 1795 and 1799 Father Badin returned to this
church only twice, having relocated in Nelson County near Bards-
town. Subsequent priests served most of Central and Eastern
Kentucky from White Sulpbur, including the Rev. Antonius Angier.

Father Samuel Montgomery led in the construction of the present
edifice, but controversy accompanied the construction. Father
Guy Chabrat came in 1823, and his priesthood was enhanced when t
Sisters of Nazareth established an academy at White Sulphur, the
first Catholic school in eastern Kentucky. Finally in 1827, the
unruly parishioners calmed down under the leadership of Father

Francis Patrick Kenrick, who later became Archbishop of Baltimon

(see continuation sheet)
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Five priests who ultimately became bishops served the congregation
at St. Francis. These included Father Kenrick, discussed in the
preceding paragraph; the Rev. Edward Fenwick, the Rev. Guy Chabrat
and the Rev. Ferdinand Brossart. Bishop George Carrell, first bisf
hop of Covington, established his second home and a seminary at
White Sulphur in 1856. The seminary had as its stated purpose to
train native clergy to '"go forth to spread the faith throughout th
new diocese just as pioneer priests had gone forth from White
Sulphur to serve the whole of Eastern Kentucky...'" The seminary
called St. Stanislas Preparatory College, disbanded during the
Civil War, after which the buildings were used as an orphanage under
the Religious Brothers of Puy, France. The church became a missioh
of the newly consecrated St. John's Church of Georgetown in 1869.

(1)

In 1875 the third educational venture to develop under the Catholit
at White Sulphur was instituted in the name of Mount Admirabilis by
the Sisters of the Visitation. It grew from a 15 student to a 65
student boarding school for young ladies in 1885. In 1896 the school
was moved to Cardome, home of the late Governor James F. Robinson.

In 1929 with the church sbowing serious signs of its years of
neglect, Father Charles A. Towell resolved ''to see that White
Sulphur was again restored to the niche it deserved.'" He raised
$19,000 for its restoration. The Fast Of Corpus Christi was held
at the church in 1933 when the mission was renamed to the patron-
age of St. Francis de Sales, having been under the cognizance of
St. Pius for some time.

Further renovation, at a cost of $53,000 was undertaken in 1951 under
the direction of the Rev. Jerome P. Heuerman, priest at St. John's
The Diocesan centennial took place here in 1953,

Various Catholic writers have called St. Francis Mission "the
cradle of Catholicism in the west;" a "rural rarity;" and "a
church with a history inseparable from that of the Roman Catholic
Church in America."
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